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STATE C? NEW MEXICO 
ENERGY, MINERALS ANE NATURAL RESOURCES DEPARTMENT 

OIL CONSERVATION DIVISION 
STATE LAND OFFICE BUILDING 

SANTA FE, NEW MEXICO 

2 December, 19 87 

EXAMINER HEARING 

IN THE MATTER OF: 

A p p l i c a t i o n of Dugan Production Cor- CASE 
po r a t i o n f o r compulsory p o o l i n g , Rio 9251 
Arr i b a County, New Mexico. 

BEFORE: Michael R. Stogner, Examiner 

TRANSCRIPT OF HEARING 

A P P E A R A N C E S 

For the D i v i s i o n : J e f f Taylor 
Attorney a t Law 
Legal Counsel to the D i v i s i o n 
State Land O f f i c e Bldg. 
Santa Fe, New Mexico 8 7501 

For Duoan Production: Robert G. S t o v a l l 
Attorney a t Lav; 
P. 0. Box 129 
Farmington, New Mexico 8 749 9 

For Amoco Production: W. Perry Pearce 
Attorney a t Lav/ 
MONTGOMERY & ANDREWS 
P. 0. Box 23 07 
Santa Fe, New Mexico 8 7504 
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I N D E X 

RICHARD CORCORAN 

Di r e c t Examination by Mr. S t o v a l l 

Cross Examination by Mr. Stogner 

E X H I B I T S 

Dugan E x h i b i t Seven, Correspondence 6 

Dugan E x h i b i t E i g h t , L i s t 8 
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MR. STOGNER: We'll c a l l next 

Case Number 9251. 

MR. TAYLOR: The a p p l i c a t i o n of 

Dugan Production Corporation f o r compulsory p o o l i n g , Rio Ar-

r i b a County, New Mexico. 

MR. STOGNER: This case was 

o r i g i n a l l y heard on November the 4th, which was taken under 

advisement but due to c e r t a i n circumstances t h i s case i s 

being reopened at t h i s time. 

We'll c a l l f o r apppearances. 

MR. STOVALL: Robert G. Sto­

v a l l , Farmington, Nev; Mexico, on behalf of the a p p l i c a n t . 

MR. STOGNER: Other appear­

ances? 

MR. PEARCE: May i t please the 

Examiner, I am W. Perry Pearce of the Santa Fe f i r m of Mont­

gomery and Andrews, appearing i n t h i s matter on behalf of 

Amoco Production Company. 

MR. STOGNER: Are there any 

other appearances? 

K i l l a l l witnesses please stand 

to be sworn at t h i s time? 

(Witness sworn.) 
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RICHARD CORCORAN, 

being r e c a l l e d as a witness and being duly sworn upon h i s 

oath, t e s t i f i e d as f o l l o w s , t o - w i t : 

DIRECT EXAMINATION 

BY MR. STOVALL: 

Q W i l l you st a t e your name, please, and 

where you reside? 

A Richard Corcoran, Farmington, New Mexico. 

Q And how are you employed? 

A Work f o r Dugan Production Corporation as a 

1andman. 

Q And have you pr e v i o u s l y t e s t i f i e d before 

the Commission and had your q u a l i f i c a t i o n s accepted? 

A I have. 

MR. STOVALL: I would o f f e r him 

as an expert landman i n t h i s case. 

MR. STOGNER: Are there any ob­

j e c t ions ? 

The witness i s so q u a l i f i e d . 

Q Mr. Corcoran, i s i t not t r u e t h a t you ap­

peared a t the o r i g i n a l hearing i n t h i s matter and presented 

testimony w i t h respect to the land information? 

A I d i d . 
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Q And w i t h respect to the e f f o r t s to con­

t a c t the various working i n t e r e s t s and unleased mineral own­

ers i n the pool f o r o b t a i n i n g t h e i r j o i n d e r p r i o r t o the 

hearing? 

A That's c o r r e c t . 

Q And at t h a t time, subsequent to the c l o s ­

ing of the case, d i d Dugan Production come across any i n f o r ­

mation which i n d i c a t e d t h a t there was an inadequacy or weak­

ness i n t h e i r n o t i c e p r o v i s i o n s i n t h e i r attempts to o b t a i n 

j o i n d e r ? 

A Yes, we d i d , and i t involved a — yes, we 

d i d . 

Q What p a r t i e s were not n o t i f i e d p r i o r to 

t h a t nearing who have an i n t e r e s t i n Section 21, which i s 

the s e c t i o n sought t o be pooled together i n t o a wel1 and who 

were not p r e v i o u s l y n o t i f i e d and who were not i d e n t i f i e d as 

e i t h e r working i n t e r e s t owners or --

A They are as f o l l o w s : Peter C. Neumann, 

Venada N a t i o n a l , and Jonansen Energy Partnership. 

Q Do you know from whom t h e i r i n t e r e s t s 

were derived? 

A Yes, I do. I t was derived from Mesa 

Grande Resources, Inc. 

Q And Mesa Grande was o r i g i n a l l y n o t i f i e d , 

given n o t i c e and the o p p o r t u n i t y to j o i n i n the w e l l , i s 
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that co r r e c t ? 

A That's c o r r e c t . 

Q And have you — subsequent to the l a s t 

hearing have ycu conducted any neg o t i a t i o n s w i t h Mesa Grande 

or any of these other i n d i v i d u a l s w i t h respect to t h e i r i n ­

t e r e s t and t h e i r p a r t i c i p a t i o n ? 

A We have w i t h a l l . 

Q And have they committed t h e i r i n t e r e s t to 

tne w e l l or otherwise agreed to p a r t i c i p a t e ? 

A They have v e r b a l l y advised t h a t — t h a t 

we w i l l -- t h a t we're both agreed, t h a t we w i l l cross convey 

c e r t a i n i n t e r e s t s , or cross farm those i n t e r e s t s . 

Q Does t h a t mean t h a t Dugan Production w i l l 

then acquire the Mesa Grande, et a l , i n t e r e s t ? 

A That's my understanding. 

Q And t h a t would include Mr. Neumann and 

Venda National and Johansen Energy. 

A That's c o r r e c t . 

Q In the meantime, have you given n o t i c e t o 

these p a r t i e s ? 

A I've — we have, and they have a l l r e ­

ceived them. 

Q And I'd ask you now t o i d e n t i f y E x h i b i t 

Number Eeven, please. 

A E x h i b i t Number Seven i s a copy of the 
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notic e sent to each of these p a r t i e s t h a t we j u s t got done 

mentioning, and w i t h a cover l e t t e r i n d i c a t i n g who i t was 

sent t o . 

Q Okay, now the no t i c e i n d i c a t e d — o f f e r e d 

that -- the various p a r t i e s the o p p o r t u n i t y to j o i n and ad­

vise them t h a t a forced pooling a p p l i c a t i o n had been f i l e d , 

i s t h a t correct? 

A I t included copies, yes, of the — of the 

— the proposed forced p o o l i n g t h a t was sent to the Commis­

sion, as w e l l as i t asked them to p a r t i c i p a t e . 

Q And the notices were sent c e r t i f i e d m a i l , 

r e t u r n r e c e i p t requested. 

A Yes, and a copy of the r e t u r n r e c e i p t i s 

— i s attached to E x h i b i t Seven f o r each of the p a r t i e s . 

0 I n o t i c e also on page one of E x h i b i t 

Seven you have i d e n t i f i e d Northwest P i p e l i n e Corporation. 

What i s t h e i r i n t e r e s t ? 

A "'hat was j u s t i n the event -- t h e i r i n ­

t e r e s t was an o v e r r i d i n g r o y a l t y w i t h the r i g h t to convert 

a f t e r payout and consequently, as i t was of record, I j u s t 

wanted to put them on no t i c e i n the event they chose to pro­

ceed . 

C Since the l a s t hearing have you done ad­

d i t i o n a l t i t l e checking and review of the p u b l i c records t o 

insure t h a t you have i d e n t i f i e d a l l p a r t i e s who would have 
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an i n t e r e s t and be e n t i t l e d t o n o t i c e i n t h i s case? 

A Ive have, and th a t ' s what we've found, 

t h a t tnese p a r t i e s were e n t i t l e d and consequently we not i c e d 

them. 

I have no f u r t h e r questions of 

the witness. 

Excuse me, one question. 

Q Were E x h i b i t s — was E x h i b i t Number 

Seven -- excuse me, I do have a question. 

Would you i d e n t i f y , please, b r i e f l y , Ex­

h i b i t Number Eight? 

A E x h i b i t Number Eight i s a - - i t ' s a 

revised working i n t e r e s t t a b u l a t i o n because of the change i n 

the p a r t i e s i n v o l v e d . We wanted to present a revised 

working i n t e r e s t , and — 

C Okay. 

A — i t f u r t h e r sets out the p a r t i e s who a t 

t h i s p o i n t i n time have executed e i t h e r AFE's or the oper­

a t i n g agreement as proposed, or both. 

C And t h i s i s a — b a s i c a l l y a r e v i s i o n of 

the t a b u l a t i o n o r i g i n a l l y presented at the o r i g i n a l hearing? 

A That's r i g h t . 

Q And were these e x h i b i t s prepared by you 

or under your supervision? 

A They were. 
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MR. STOVALL: Move the admis­

sion of E x h i b i t s Number Seven and Eight. 

MR. STOGNER: Are there any ob­

je c t i o n s ? 

MR. PEARCE: No o b j e c t i o n . 

MR. STOGNER: Dugan Production 

E x h i o i t s Seven and Eight w i l l be admitted i n t o evidence. 

Mr. Pearce? 

MR. PEARCE: No questions. 

CROSS EXAMINATION 

BY MR. STOGNER: 

0 Looking a t your E x h i b i t Number Eight — 

A Yes. 

Q -- I guess my a r i t h m e t i c might be a l i t ­

t l e o f f , but your working i n t e r e s t doesn't seem to add up t o 

100. 

Do you know how f a r or how close we are? 

A No, s i r . 

MR. STOVALL: We'll have t h a t 

answer f o r you i n j u s t a moment, Mr. Examiner. 

A I t turns out t o be 99 p o i n t , and there 

are one, two, three, f o u r , f i v e , s i x nines. 

Q Okay. A l l r i g h t , I was j u s t wanting t o 

see how f a r I was o f f . 
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Now, d i d you send your l e t t e r s i n E x h i b i t 

Number Seven r e t u r n r e c e i p t , and those are attached, are 

they not? 

A Yes, they are. 

Q Have you had any response from any of 

these p a r t i e s ? 

A Yes, I have. Subsequent to Sunday those 

l e t t e r s , Johansen has executed the AFE. 

I've t a l k e d to Venada, who i s -- said — 

advised me t h a t they would probably go along w i t h whatever 

deal I work out w i t h Mesa, and Mesa, furthermore, has sent 

out a l e t t e r t h a t we have executed and returned w i t h c e r t a i n 

changes t o a f f e c t an agreement whereby we exchange p a r t of 

our i n t e r e s t f o r pa r t of t h e i r i n t e r e s t , a l l of t h e i r 

i n t e r e s t i n t h i s p a r t i c u l a r s e c t i o n . 

So, although i t ' s not i n w r i t i n g , i t i s , 

we f e e l i t ' s imminent. 

MR. STOGNER: Are there any 

other questions of t h i s witness? 

A I can get you a copy of t h a t l e t t e r i f 

you'd care f o r i t . 

MR. STOVALL: I'd j u s t l i k e t o 

submit i t afforwards. 

V1R. STOGNER: Why d o n ' t you 
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A Okay. 

MR. STOGNER: Make th a t p a r t of 

the record. 

MR. STOVALL: One p o i n t of 

c l a r i f i c a t i o n . You're r e f e r r i n g to Mesa, you're r e f e r r i n g 

to Mesa Grande Resources, aren't you? 

A Yes, s i r , t h a t ' s c o r r e c t . That's what I 

mean. 

MR. STOGNER Are there any ques­

t i o n s of t h i s witness? 

I f not, he may be excused. 

Mr. S t o v a l l , do you have any­

t h i n g f u r t h e r ? 

MR. STOVALL: No. I would j u s t 

ask t h a t the D i v i s i o n review the c l o s i n g statement and the 

request made t h e r e i n , p a r t i c u l a r l y w i t h respect to i d e n t i ­

f y i n g ate p a r t i e s who are to be force pooled. 

Quite f r a n k l y , we only a n t i c i ­

pate t h a t Mountain States Natural Gas Company i s the only 

party who w i l l not j o i n or farm out t h e i r i n t e r e s t to Dugan. 

MR. STOGNER: Thank you, Mr. 

S t o v a l l . 

Mr. Pearce, do you have any­

thing? 

MR. PEARCE: Nothing, Mr. Exam-
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MR. STOGNER: Then i f there i s 

nothing else f u r t h e r i n Case Number 9251, i t w i l l be taken 

under advisement. 

(Hearing concluded.) 
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C E R T I F I C A T E 

I , SALLY W. BOYD, C.S.R., DO HEREBY 

CERTIFY t h a t the foregoing T r a n s c r i p t of Hearing before the 

O i l Conservation D i v i s i o n (Commission) was reported by me; 

th a t the said t r a n s c r i p t i s a f u l l , t r u e , and c o r r e c t record 

of the nearing, prepared by me to the best of my a b i l i t y . 
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO 
ENERGY, MINERALS, AND NATURAL RESOURCES DEPARTMENT 

OIL CONSERVATION DIVISION 
STATE LAND OFFICE BLDG. 
SANTA FE, NEW MEXICO 

4 November 198 7 

IN THE MATTER OF: 
A p p l i c a t i o n of Dugan Production Cor- CASE 
po r a t i o n f o r compulsory p o o l i n g , Rio 9251 
Ar r i b a County, New Mexico. 

BEFORE: Michael E. Stogner, Examiner 

TRANSCRIPT OF HEARING 

A P P E A R A N C E S 

For the D i v i s i o n : J e f f Taylor 
Attorney a t Law 
Legal Counsel t o the D i v i s i o n 
State Land O f f i c e Bldg. 
Santa Fe, New Mexico 87501 

For Dugan Production: Robert G. S t o v a l l 
Attorney a t Law 
P. 0. Box 129 
Farmington, New Mexico 87499 
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JOHN ROE 

D i r e c t E x a m i n a t i n by Mr . S t o v a l l 19 

E X H I B I T S 

Dugan E x h i b i t One, Map 5 

Dugan E x h i b i t Two, C-102 6 

Dugan E x h i b i t Three, L e t t e r 6 

Dugan E x h i b i t Four, L i s t 8 

Dugan E x h i b i t Five, Notices 11 

Dugan E x h i b i t Six, I n f o r m a t i o n 27 
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MR. STOGNER: C a l l next Case 

9251. 

MR. TAYLOR: The a p p l i c a t i o n of 

Dugan Production Corporation f o r compulsory p o o l i n g , Rio 

Ar r i b a County, Mew Mexico. 

MR. STOGNER: C a l l f o r 

appearances. 

MR. STOVALL: Robert G. 

S t o v a l l , Farmington, New Mexico, on behalf of Dugan 

Production Corp. 

MR. STOGNER: Are there any 

other appearances i n t h i s matter? 

Mr. S t o v a l l , do you have 

witnesses ? 

MR. STOVALL: Two. 

MR. STOGNER: W i l l they both 

stand and be sworn a t t h i s time? 

(Witnesses sworn.) 

MR. STOGNER: Mr. S t o v a l l ? 

MR. STOVALL: I'd f i r s t l i k e t o 

c a l l Rich Corcoran. 
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RICHARD CORCORAN, 

being c a l l e d as a witness and being duly sworn upon h i s 

oath, t e s t i f i e d as f o l l o w s , t o - w i t : 

DIRECT EXAMINATION 

BY MR. STOVALL: 

Q Mr. Corcoran, would you s t a t e your f u l l 

name and place of residence, please? 

A My name i s Rich Corcoran and I reside i n 

Farmington, New Mexico. 

Q And how are you employed? 

A I'm employed by Dugan Production Corpora­

t i o n as t h e i r landman. 

Q And i n t h a t capacity are you f a m i l i a r 

w i t h the a p p l i c a t i o n i n t h i s case and the matters p e r t a i n i n g 

thereto? 

A Yes, I am. 

Q Have you ever t e s t i f i e d before t h i s Com­

mission and had your c r e d e n t i a l s accepted as a — 

A I have not. 

Q — petroleum landman? Would you please 

t e l l the Examiner your educational background? 

A I have a degree i n minerals land manage­

ment from Colorado U n i v e r s i t y and subsequent t o t h a t I have 
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approximately ten years i n the i n d u s t r y , p a r t of which time 

— most — a l o t of which i s (unclear) t i t l e i n p a r t , r e ­

cords searching and general -- general land matters. 

MR. STOVALL: I would tender 

Mr. Corcoran as an expert petroleum landman. 

MR. STOGNER: Mr. Corcoran i s 

so q u a l i f i e d . 

Q I ask you to look a t E x h i b i t Number One 

and i d e n t i f y t h a t , please. 

A This e x h i b i t s covers an area i n c l u d i n g 

Township — parts of Township 25 North and 26 North, Range 2 

West. 

I t f u r t h e r r e f l e c t s by cross hatch i n t e r ­

est t h a t Dugan has an i n t e r e s t i n . 

A d d i t i o n a l l y , i n a bo l d , s o l i d , orange 

l i n e i t depicts the c u r r e n t Gavilan Mancos Pool boundary. 

In a dashed orange l i n e i t describes the proposed expansion 

or extension to the Gavilan Mancos Pool and i n blue i t out­

l i n e s , s o l i d blue l i n e i t o u t l i n e s our proposed spacing f o r 

t h i s w e l l . 

Further, i t i n d i c a t e s by black dot w e l l 

— producing w e l l l o c a t i o n s from t h i s — t h i s zone — from 

these zones. 

Q A l l r i g h t , thank you. I would ask you 

now to look at E x h i b i t Number Two and i d e n t i f y t h a t e x h i b i t , 
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please. 

A E x h i b i t Number Two i s a copy of the C-102 

t h a t we attached to the a p p l i c a t i o n f o r permit to d r i l l f o r 

the Evans Com No. 1 Well. 

I t i d e n t i f i e s w e l l l o c a t i o n — the w e l l 

l o c a t i o n as surveyed and the lease ownership as i t was known 

to Dugan at the time the a p p l i c a t i o n was submitted t o the 

BLM. 

Q Thank you. I'd now ask you t h a t you t u r n 

t o E x h i b i t Number Three and i d e n t i f y t h a t . 

A Okay. E x h i b i t Number Three i s a — i t ' s 

a prototype l e t t e r which o f f e r s the o p p o r t u n i t y t o j o i n t o 

the working i n t e r e s t owners w i t h o u t — and advises t h a t 

w i t h o u t t h e i r j o i n d e r we would force pool t h e i r i n t e r e s t i n 

the — i n the proposed spacing u n i t . 

Q How many — how many act u a l l e t t e r s d i d 

you send t o i d e n t i f i e d working i n t e r e s t owners? 

A I n i t i a l l y we sent one out i n July of 19 

— t h i s year, 1987. We fol l o w e d t h a t up i n September — on 

September 16th of 1987, covering the same, the same — bas­

i c a l l y the same proposal w i t h minor changes. 

Q And both l e t t e r s were sent t o the people 

i d e n t i f i e d on the f i r s t page, i s t h a t c o r r e c t ? 

A No, t h a t ' s — the people t h a t the i n d i v i ­

dual l e t t e r s were sent t o are i d e n t i f i e d by d i s t r i b u t i o n 
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l i s t s and they coincide w i t h the exception of a couple were 

added t o the second l e t t e r and one person was deleted from 

the f i r s t l e t t e r . 

Do you want me t o i d e n t i f y those? 

Q I f you would, please. 

A Okay. Mr. Bayless was added to the sec­

ond l e t t e r . Hunt Walker — Huntington T. Walker was also 

added to the second l e t t e r , and a David S c h a f f n i t was de­

l e t e d from the second l e t t e r . 

Q And why was David S c h a f f n i t deleted? 

A His i n t e r e s t was -- was c o n t r o l l e d by the 

H i l l s , Margaret H i l l and Alinda Hunt H i l l T r ust. 

Q And so you d i d say i n t h i s l e t t e r you o f ­

fered the people these -- who are these people? Are they 

working i n t e r e s t owners or r o y a l t y owners or --

A Yes, they are. They're working i n t e r e s t 

owners i n the proposed w e l l . 

Q As i d e n t i f i e d on your E x h i b i t Two, I be­

l i e v e i t i s , i s t h a t c o r r e c t ? 

A That's c o r r e c t . 

Q I n t h e i r r espective t r a c t s ? 

A That's c o r r e c t . 

Q You o f f e r e d them the o p p o r t u n i t y to j o i n 

i n the d r i l l i n g of the w e l l or a l t e r n a t i v e l y t o p a r t i c i p a t e 

i n some way by farming out t h e i r i n t e r e s t or otherwise, and 
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they d i d not j o i n ? 

A We o f f e r e d them the o p p o r t u n i t y t o j o i n 

and we f u r t h e r advised t h a t w i t h o u t t h e i r j o i n d e r we would 

have t o proceed w i t h forced p o o l i n g . 

At t h a t — i n t h i s p a r t i c u l a r l e t t e r we 

may not have o f f e r e d them a farmout or — or lease, (un­

cl e a r ) lease. 

Q W i l l you t u r n to E x h i b i t Number Four, 

please and i d e n t i f y t h a t e x h i b i t ? 

A Okay. This e x h i b i t consists of a l i s t of 

people t h a t we sent — t h a t our a t t o r n e y , Mr. S t o v a l l , sent 

to the people i n v o l v e d , t o the working i n t e r e s t owners i n ­

volved, and g i v i n g t h a t — i t provides them n o t i c e of Dugan 

Production Corporation's a p p l i c a t i o n f o r forced p o o l i n g . 

I t f u r t h e r — i f f u r t h e r , i t provides a 

copy of a l l the r e t u r n r e c e i p t s involved i n t h a t . 

Q A l l r i g h t , on the f i r s t page there's a 

l i s t of names. Then there are four pages of r e t u r n r e ­

c e i p t s , and then a prototype l e t t e r , i s t h a t c o r r e c t ? 

A That i s c o r r e c t . 

Q And i s t h a t l i s t of names the same i n t e r ­

est owners as were i d e n t i f i e d and to whom no t i c e was sent on 

September 16th --

A I t i s . 
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Q — by Dugan Production? And has each of 

those persons received a copy of the l e t t e r , according t o 

the r e t u r n r e c e i p t s ? 

A Yes, they have. 

Q What step d i d you take t o determine the 

ownership of the o i l and gas, and p a r t i c u l a r l y the working 

i n t e r e s t ownership, i n Section 21 of Township 26 North, Ran­

ge 2 West? 

A Okay. I n i t i a l l y we h i r e d a c o n t r a c t 

landman who researched the county records and he fu r n i s h e d 

us a l i s t of a l l the instruments t h a t he found a f f e c t i n g 

t i t l e t o the lands as l i s t e d on the t r a c t index i n the ab­

s t r a c t o f f i c e . 

Then he reviewed c e r t a i n of those docu­

ments i n the county records and concluded what the ownership 

he thought was. 

I , a f t e r being supplied w i t h the l i s t of 

the books and pages involved of the instruments t h a t he 

i d e n t i f i e d , I was able to o b t a i n most of those intruments 

from another operator who owns an i n t e r e s t i n parts of these 

lands, and reviewed those instruments and made my determina­

t i o n t h a t — t h a t my f i n d i n g p a r a l l e l e d , b a s i c a l l y , the bro­

ker ' s. 

Further, we reviewed the Federal a b s t r a c t 

t a k e o f f i n f o r m a t i o n and our own f i l e s , which a t p o i n t s i n -
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eluded some t i t l e opinions and based on t h i s i n f o r m a t i o n we 

made a determination of the i n t e r e s t s i n v o l v e d . 

Q How many leases would you estimate are 

involved i n --

A I n one p a r t i c u l a r — 

Q — the section? 

A -- t r a c t i n t h i s — i n t h i s proposed 

spacing u n i t , which — which accounts f o r approximately 36 

percent, contains over 40 leases which were i n p a r t acquired 

back i n 1950 and on through the years. I t ' s — they're 

p a r t i c u l a r l y — p a r t i c u l a r l y d i f f i c u l t t o f o l l o w . There's 

een several w e l l s d r i l l e d which in v o l v e p o r t i o n s of these 

same leases and other t r a c t s , and there — there were 

numerous over-conveyances and subsequent conveyances from 

the over-conveyances and i t got very s t i c k y . 

Q Are you r e f e r r i n g to Tract Number 5 on 

your E x h i b i t Number Two, i s t h a t the t r a c t to which you're 

r e f e r r i n g ? 

A Let's see, I — yes, I am. 

Q Is t h a t a 6, I'm s o r r y . 

A Yeah, i t — 

Q That's Tract Number 6, I stand c o r r e c t e d . 

With respect t o p a r t i c u l a r l y the fee 

leases involved i n t h i s — i n t h i s acreage, have you 

examined those leases to determine whether or not they 
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pooling clauses which would permit pooling — 

A I have. 

Q — of the acreage required? 

A I have reviewed them. 

Q And do a l l of those leases contain pool­

ing clauses t h a t allow p o o l i n g on 640 acres? 

A With the exception of two leases, being 

the Leota Jones and the Annie White leases. 

Q And those leases do not contai n p o o l i n g 

clauses which allow f o r 640 acres, i s t h a t your — 

A That's — t h a t ' s c o r r e c t . 

Q And have you n o t i f i e d the r o y a l t y owners 

on those leases? 

A We have. 

Q And I p o i n t you to E x h i b i t Number Five. 

A Yes, and t h a t , E x h i b i t Number Five does 

e x a c t l y t h a t . I t — i t provides notices t o the — the two 

p a r t i e s whose leases d i d not grant p o o l i n g language, and 

f u r t h e r , t h a t e x h i b i t also provides a copy of the r e t u r n r e ­

c e i p t t h a t — t h a t t h i s i n t o r m a t i o n was received. 

Q Now are you saying t h a t the second page, 

the l e t t e r t h a t appears w i t h t h a t e x h i b i t , was sent t o both 

of those p a r t i e s ? 

A Yes, t h a t ' s c o r r e c t . 

Q And who i s Mrs. E r i n Shaefer? Do you 
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know? 

A Mrs. E r i n Shaefer i s the personal repre­

s e n t a t i v e of the Estate of Annie White, who was one of the 

p a r t i e s i n v o l v e d ; one of the p a r t i e s whose leases d i d not 

contain p o o l i n g language a l l o w i n g 640 acres. 

Q And to the best of your knowledge w i t h 

respect to Tract No. 6, a l l the other leases provide f o r 

pooling and allow f o r po o l i n g up t o 640 acres and you've no­

t i f i e d a l l the working i n t e r e s t owners on those leases? 

A That i s c o r r e c t . 

Q And w i t h respect t o Tract No. 5, you — 

t h a t ' s shown on E x h i b i t Number Two as Dugan Production, 

which obviously does not r e q u i r e n o t i c e , i s t h a t c o r r e c t ? 

A Yes, t h a t ' s c o r r e c t . 

Q And w i t h respect to Tracts Nos. 1 and 2, 

you've n o t i f i e d the working i n t e r e s t owners there? 

A Yes, we have n o t i f i e d them. 

Q And w i t h respect t o Tract No. 4, you've 

n o t i f i e d the working i n t e r e s t owners. 

A That's c o r r e c t . 

Q And w i t h respect t o Tract No. 3, are you 

aware of any working i n t e r e s t s i n t h a t t r a c t which have not 

been n o t i f i e d ? 

A I received by phone c a l l Monday — of 

Monday, I received i n f o r m a t i o n t h a t — t h a t there i s some 
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question as to whether or not some people t h a t are -- t h a t 

have an i n t e r e s t may not have received n o t i c e . 

Q And who d i d you receive t h a t phone c a l l 

from? 

A I received t h a t phone c a l l from Mesa 

Grande, Mesa Grande, from a Mr. Greg P h i l l i p s . 

Q And what d i d he t e l l you a t t h a t time? 

A He advised me t h a t — t h a t he made 

t h a t there are some other p a r t i e s involved i n t h a t — i n 

t h e i r 75 percent i n t e r e s t t h a t -- t h a t I have i d e n t i f i e d as 

Mesa Grande's 75 percent i n t e r e s t , t h a t may not have r e ­

ceived n o t i c e . 

Q Were you aware of any other p a r t i e s other 

than Mesa Grande and Dugan Production t h a t had a working 

i n t e r e s t i n Tract No. 3? 

A I was not, u n t i l Monday, and f u r t h e r , I 

would l i k e t o j u s t s t a t e t h a t — t h a t we r e l i e d i n p a r t on 

Mesa Grande's — t h a t , t h i s has been relayed t o me, t h a t 

Mesa Grande advised t h a t they would advise t h e i r — t h e i r — 

Q You're r e f e r r i n g t o the people t h a t Mr. 

P h i l l i p s advised you about on Monday. 

A Right, t h a t ' s e x a c t l y r i g h t , t h a t they 

would take care of n o t i c i n g them and had been t a l k i n g w i t h 

them. 

MR. STOVALL: Okay, I have no 
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f u r t h e r questions of t h i s witness, Mr. Examiner. 

MR. STOGNER: Which e x h i b i t s do 

you wish to o f f e r i n t o evidence a t t h i s time, Mr. S t o v a l l ? 

MR. STOVALL: Well, I can do i t 

now or I can do i t l a t e r . I was going t o do the whole pack­

age at the end. 

MR. STOGNER: Oh, you have — 

okay, t h a t would be f i n e , but you only covered up t o Five, 

i s t h a t c o r r e c t ? 

MR. STOVALL: I've only covered 

up to Five a t t h i s time. 

MR. STOGNER: Okay. 

MR. STOVALL: There i s one ad­

d i t i o n a l e x h i b i t but Mr. Roe w i l l be using the e x h i b i t s t o 

t e s t i f y . 

CROSS EXAMINATION 

BY MR. STOGNER: 

Q Mr. Corcoran, I guess I'm s t i l l a l i t t l e 

confused. Let's go t o E x h i b i t Number Three there. Mountain 

States, they haven't j o i n e d , i s t h a t r i g h t ? 

A Not as of — no, they have not. 

Q Okay. Mesa Grande Resources? 

A No. 

Q Do you look f o r them to? 
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A Yes. Well, I look f o r us t o e i t h e r own 

t h e i r i n t e r e s t or f o r them to j o i n . 

Q Okay, how about Margaret H i l l ? 

A Her i n t e r e s t and Alinda Hunt H i l l ' s Trust 

i n t e r e s t has been farmed out t o another p a r t y , Robert Bay­

les s , and he i s p a r t i c i p a t i n g as t o a l l of those i n t e r e s t s . 

Q Okay, so they're e s s e n t i a l l y taken care 

o f . 

A Right. 

MR. STOVALL: Excuse me, l e t me 

c l a r i f y t h a t f o r the moment. 

As of t h i s time t o the best of 

your knowledge, t h a t farmout agreement has not been con­

cluded, however, and they have not entered i n t o o p erating 

agreement w i t h Dugan Production as y e t . 

A No, they have not signed the operating 

agreement. They have, however, signed the A u t h o r i z a t i o n f o r 

Expenditure and returned t h a t as t o t h e i r i n t e r e s t i n the 

H i l l s and Hunts. 

Q They plan t o , you j u s t haven't got a f i r m 

(unclear) f o r Mr. Bayless --

A That's c o r r e c t . 

Q -- i s t h a t c o r r e c t ? 

A That's c o r r e c t . 

Q And how about Huntington H i l l ? 
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A Yes, they have j o i n e d and so has Kinder-

mac Partnership. 

Q Okay, E x h i b i t Number Five, now t h a t ' s the 

two r o y a l t y i n t e r e s t owners — 

A Yes. 

Q — t h a t have o l d leases t h a t d i d not con­

t a i n the o r i g i n a l wording. 

A Well, they happen t o be newer leases, but 

tha t ' s c o r r e c t , yes. 

Q Okay. 

MR. STOVALL: Who i s t h e i r l e s ­

see? That might make t h a t a l i t t l e — 

A I t i s Mr. Bayless. 

Q So being r o y a l t y i n t e r e s t owners, they 

would not be --

A Oh, he has agreed t o p a r t i c i p a t e f o r 

t h e i r i n t e r e s t . 

Q Oh, okay. 

MR. STOVALL: Do you happen t o 

know of any r e l a t i o n s h i p between the — pardon me f o r i n t e r ­

r u p t i n g , but I can c l a r i f y some of your questions, Mr. Exa­

miner. 

MR. STOGNER: Please do. 

MR. STOVALL: Do you know of 

any r e l a t i o n s h i p between Mrs. Jone and Mr. Bayless? 
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A Yes, she i s h i s mother-in-law, as I un­

derstand i t , and so, too, i s -- Annie White i s also r e l a t e d 

i n some s h i r t t a i l way or — 

MR. STOGNER: S h i r t t a i l way? 

I"m not sure I --

A D i s t a n t way, some d i s t a n t way, yes. 

Q Okay. 

A E x h i b i t how, I'm not c e r t a i n . 

Q Okay. 

MR. STOVALL: And you've had 

conversations w i t h Mr. Bayless w i t h respect to the leases, 

attempts to negotiate a broadened poo l i n g clause? 

A Yes, I have, and, you know, advised them 

i n w r i t i n g of — t h a t he was going to p a r t i c i p a t e i n t h e i r 

i n t e r e s t . 

Q Who have you been i n contact w i t h a t 

Mountain States Natural Gas, have you been i n contact w i t h 

Mr. B l a i r any? 

A No, s i r , we have w r i t t e n t o Mr. B l a i r and 

— but we've not a c t u a l l y had phone conversations w i t h Mr. 

B l a i r . 

Q Now I no t i c e on your r e t u r n r e c e i p t s i n 

E x h i b i t Number Four --

A Yes. 

Q — Mr. K e l l a h i n . Was he representing 
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Mountain States Natural Gas? 

A 

Q 

th a t , 

Q 

A 

Yes, he was. 

Okay, but nov; --

MR. STOVALL: I f I may c l a r i f y 

Okay. 

But j u s t i n a s t a t u t o r y — 

MR. STOVALL: I f I may c l a r i f y 

t h a t , 

A Go ahead. 

MR. STOVALL: I f I may c l a r i f y 

i t , not h i s testimony, of course, but f o r your i n f o r m a t i o n , 

Mr. K e l l a h i n i s the r e g i s t e r e d — o f f i c i a l r e g i s t e r e d agent 

f o r Mountain States Natural Gas w i t h the Corporation 

Commission i n New Mexico, although Mr. K e l l a h i n apparently 

was somewhat surpri s e d when we advised him t h a t he was s t i l l 

t h e r e , but we f e l t we needed t o n o t i f y him as the r e g i s t e r e d 

agent, i n a d d i t i o n to n o t i f y i n g Mountain States d i r e c t l y . 

Q Do you concur w i t h t h a t , Mr. Corcoran? 

A Yes, I do. 

MR. STOGNER: I have no f u r t h e r 

questions of t h i s witness. 

Mr. S t o v a l l ? 

MR. STOVALL: I'd now l i k e t o 

c a l l John Roe. 
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JOHN ROE, 

being c a l l e d as a witness and being duly sworn upon h i s 

oath, t e s t i f i e d as f o l l o w s , t o - w i t : 

DIRECT EXAMINATION 

BY MR. STOVALL: 

Q Mr. Roe, would you please s t a t e your name 

and place of residence? 

A My name i s John Roe and I reside i n 

Farmington, New Mexico. 

Q And how are you employed, Mr. Roe? 

A I am the Engineering Manager f o r Dugan 

Production Corporation. 

Q And have you t e s t i f i e d p r e v i o u s l y before 

t h i s commission and had your c r e d e n t i a l s accepted? 

A Yes, I have. 

Q And are you f a m i l i a r w i t h the a p p l i c a t i o n 

i n t h i s case and the ma t e r i a l s t h e r e t o and knowledgable 

about the matters about which you're t o t e s t i f y ? 

A Yes. 

MR. STOVALL: I o f f e r Mr. Roe 

as a q u a l i f i e d petroleum engineer. 

MR. STOGNER: Mr. Roe i s so 

q u a l i f i e d . 
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Q You heard Mr. Corcoran t e s t i f y t h a t he 

had some conversation w i t h Mesa Grande Resources regarding 

some i n t e r e s t s apparently somehow derived through Mesa Gran­

de Resources w i t h respect t o Tract No. 3 on E x h i b i t Two. 

Did you — d i d you hear Mr. Corcorcan so t e s t i f y ? 

A Yes, I d i d . 

Q And do you have any p a r t i c u l a r knowledge 

or were you aware of those i n t e r e s t s a t any time p r i o r t o 

t h i s week? 

A Yes. I n f a c t the act u a l conversation 

w i t h Mesa Grande Resources t h a t r e s u l t e d i n us becoming 

aware of Mesa Grande having i n v e s t o r i n t e r e s t s r e l a t e d t o 

t h e i r 75 percent i n t e r e s t i n our common lease, which i s 

i d e n t i f i e d i n Tract 3, occurred between a conversation be­

tween Greg P h i l l i p s and myself p r i o r t o us su b m i t t i n g our 

l e t t e r requesting t h e i r p a r t i c i p a t i o n i n t h i s d r i l l i n g pro­

j e c t on July 31st of 1987. 

Q And what was the nature of t h a t conversa­

t i o n ? 

A Well, the phone conversation o r i g i n a l l y , 

I had c a l l e d Mesa Grande Resources t o confirm t h e i r owner­

ship as — as we had tracked i t down through the records 

t h a t were a v a i l a b l e t o us. 

At t h a t time Greg P h i l l i p s had i n d i c a t e d 

t o me t h a t — t h a t they i n f a c t compositely owned w i t h an 
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i n v e s t o r group the 75 percent i n t e r e s t of the lease t h a t was 

held common w i t h Dugan Production. This i n t e r e s t was pur­

chased from Northwest P i p e l i n e several years ago and appar­

e n t l y a t — during t h a t purchase Mesa Grande shared the 

leasehold i n t e r e s t w i t h other i n v e s t o r s . 

Q And d i d Mr. P h i l l i p s make any 

representations t o you or i d e n t i f y those i n v e s t o r s f o r you 

or i n any way l e t you know who they were so t h a t you could 

n o t i f y them? 

A I had asked Greg P h i l l i p s f o r a l i s t of 

the people t h a t we needed t o send the necessary AFE to and 

the notices t h a t we knew would be forthcoming i n our 

proposal, and Greg advised me t h a t he would p r e f e r to have 

contact w i t h h i s i n v e s t i n g group and t h a t he assured me t h a t 

the necessary n o t i c e and the securing of the necessary 

approvals from t h e i r i n v e s t o r group, he would take care of 

t h a t as long as I would send him the — a copy s u f f i c i e n t 

f o r reproduction f o r him t o take care of t h a t n o t i c e . 

And as a r e s u l t , our o r i g i n a l l e t t e r and 

our subsequent l e t t e r , which t r a n s m i t t e d an amended AFE, was 

sent o t Mesa Grande Resources, et a l . 

Q And to the best of your knowledge Mesa 

Grande was the nominal owner of t h a t 75 percent i n t e r e s t and 

represented any i n v e s t o r s i t might have i n 

A That was what Greg had l e f t me w i t h , yes. 
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Q I would ask you now to t u r n back t o Exhi­

b i t Number One, which Mr. Corcoran i d e n t i f i e d as a map of 

the area and i d e n t i f i e d the various markings on t h a t , and 

j u s t looking a t t h a t i n general I would ask you, are you 

f a m i l i a r w i t h the pool r u l e s f o r the Gavilan Mancos O i l 

Pool? 

A Yes, I am, am f a m i l i a r w i t h the Gavilan 

Mancos O i l Pool Pules. 

Q And are you f a m i l i r w i t h the boundaries 

of t h a t pool? 

A Yes. 

Q And the nomenclature case which was pre­

v i o u s l y heard, 9250, heard j u s t before t h i s case? 

A Yes. 

Q And are those boundaries of the o r i g i n a l 

pool and the nomenclature a c t u a l l y represented on t h i s map? 

A Yes, they are. 

Q And are you — i t appears from t h i s map 

t h a t the w e l l , the l o c a t i o n and the spacing u n i t f o r the 

Evans i s not w i t h i n the -- e i t h e r the pool or the extension 

by the nomenclature case, i s t h a t c o r r e c t ? 

A That i s c o r r e c t . 

Q And do the r u l e s of the pool take — pro­

vide f o r the d r i l l i n g of any w e l l outside the boundaries of 

the pool? 
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A Yes. Rule 1 of the Gavilan Mancos Pool 

Rules s t i p u l a t e s t h a t any w e l l e i t h e r d r i l l e d or reworked 

w i t h i n a mile of the boundary of the Gavilan Mancos Pool 

w i l l operate under the Gavilan Mancos Special Pool Rules. 

Q Is the l o c a t i o n which has been selected 

f o r the Evans No. 1 Well a l e g a l l o c a t i o n w i t h i n the — un­

der — under those r u l e s f o r the Gavilan Mancos O i l Pool? 

A Yes, i t i s . 

Q And 640 acres i s the p r o r a t i o n u n i t f o r a 

w e l l d r i l l e d i n the Gavilan Mancos O i l Pool? 

A Yes. 

Q I n the a p p l i c a t i o n before the D i v i s i o n 

the Dugan Production Corporation i s asking t h a t i t be desig­

nated the operator and makes the a l l e g a t i o n t h a t i t i s q u a l ­

i f i e d to so a c t . 

Would you b r i e f l y describe Dugan's q u a l i ­

f i c a t i o n s t o act as an operator? 

A Yes, I w i l l . Dugan Production has lease­

hold i n t e r e s t w i t h i n Section 21 t h a t represents 40.635 per­

cent of the t o t a l ownership. We are the l a r g e s t s i n g l e 

working i n t e r e s t owner w i t h i n Section 21. The second l a r ­

gest i n t e r e s t owner would be Mountain States Natural Gas 

Corporation. 

We have been involved i n the Gavilan Man­

cos Pool since the discovery w e l l was d r i l l e d i n 1981 and we 
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have p a r t i c i p a t e d i n a l i t t l e over h a l f of the 72 w e l l s t h a t 

have been d r i l l e d w i t h i n the pool and we've a c t u a l l y super­

vised the d r i l l i n g , completion, and operation during the 

f i e l d development of approximately 23 w e l l s . 

Q And you're r e f e r r i n g only t o the Gavilan 

Mancos O i l Pool and not the — 

A Yes, s i r . 

Q — not to Dugan's other operations. 

A Right. That — t h a t i s j u s t w e l l s w i t h i n 

the boundary of the Gavilan Mancos O i l Pool. 

Q I'd ask you now to look a t what's been 

i d e n t i f i e d as E x h i b i t Number Three, Dugan, and t u r n to the 

pages t h a t are i d e n t i f i e d as A u t h o r i z a t i o n s f o r Expenditure, 

and i s t h i s — there are two of those i n the e x h i b i t , i s 

t h a t c o r r e c t ? 

A Yes, t h a t would be the — yes, t h a t ' s 

c o r r e c t . 

Page 5 — 

Q And the l a s t page of the — 

A — and page number 10, which i s the l a s t 

page. 

Q And would you t e l l the Examiner why there 

are a c t u a l l y two AFE's i n t h i s — t h i s i s the package t h a t 

i s the n o t i c e and request f o r j o i n d e r to the working i n t e r ­

est owners, i s t h a t c o r r e c t ? 
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A Yes, t h a t i s c o r r e c t . The o r i g i n a l AFE, 

or the l a s t page of t h i s package, was prepared on J u l y 16th 

of 1987 and a t t h a t time i t was our i n t e n t i o n t o d r i l l a 

w e l l to a depth of 8390 f e e t to i n v e s t i g a t e the p o t e n t i a l i n 

the Dakota formation; however, our primary o b j e c t i v e was the 

Mancos formation. 

For many reasons we l a t e r r e v ised our 

plans to d r i l l to the Dakota. We revised our TD from 8390 

to 8090, which i s a depth adequate t o d r i l l through and 

evaluate the Mancos formation and i t i s our revised i n t e n ­

t i o n , which i s r e f l e c t e d on the September 16th of 1987 AFE, 

and t h i s i s the AFE t h a t Mr. Corcoran i d e n t i f e d as having 

been executed by the working i n t e r e s t owners. 

I t i s our i n t e n t i o n t o d r i l l through the 

Mancos and complete i n the Mancos form a t i o n . 

Q I n your — based upon your experience as 

a petroleum engineer, do you b e l i e v e t h i s AFE represents a 

reasonable estimated cost f o r a w e l l of t h i s depth? 

A Based upon our recent experience, t h i s i s 

our best estimate of the costs from a r e l a t i v e l y t r o u b l e -

f r e e w e l l , yes. 

Q And i f the D i v i s i o n were to approve your 

a p p l i c a t i o n f o r forced p o o l i n g , would you also ask the D i v i ­

sion to approve t h i s A u t h o r i z a t i o n f o r Expenditure as an es­

timated cost, reasonable estimated cost f o r the d r i l l i n g of 
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t h i s w e l l ? 

A Yes, we would. That i s our request. 

Q And would you ask the Commission t o 

include i n i t s order, should i t approve the a p p l i c a t i o n f o r 

forced p o o l i n g , p r o v i s i o n s t h a t would allow the operator t o 

recover, f i r s t from p a r t i e s t h a t are forced pooled, a 

prepayment of estimated costs and then upon completion t o 

allow the operator t o c o l l e c t a c t u a l costs of d r i l l i n g and 

completion from other working i n t e r e s t owners who e l e c t to 

p a r t i c i p a t e ? 

A Yes. 

Q And the a p p l i c a t i o n also requests t h a t 

the D i v i s i o n authorize the operator to c o l l e c t from those 

i n t e r e s t owners who e l e c t — who choose t o pay t h e i r costs 

out of proceeds r a t h e r than to prepay t h e i r costs an 

a d d i t i o n a l r i s k f a c t o r of 200 percent. Do you b e l i v e t h a t ' s 

reasonable? 

A I t ' s our request t h a t the Commission 

authorize the maximum permissible p e n a l t i e s , which i t ' s my 

understanding the s t a t u t e s provide t h a t a t 200 percent. 

Q And on what basis do you j u s t i f y 

c o l l e c t i n g the maximum authorized r i s k penalty? 

A Well, t h i s i s an area t h a t there i s a 

s u b s t a n t i a l amount of p o t e n t i a l f o r d r i l l i n g problems 

ranging from l o s t c i r c u l a t i o n to deviated w e l l s . I t ' s an 
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area we have q u i t e a b i t of experience i n and there are on 

occasion a s u b s t a n t i a l amount of d r i l l i n g problems encoun­

tered . 

Q I would ask you now t o t u r n to what's 

been marked as E x h i b i t Number Six, Mr. Roe, would you iden­

t i f y t h a t , please? 

A Okay. E x h i b i t Number Six i s — c o n s i s t s 

of two pages, which are b a s i c a l l y i n f o r m a t i o n reproduced 

from the c u r r e n t survey which presents 1985 and '86 r e s u l t s 

by a f i r m , Ernst and Whinney, and the primary purpose of 

t h i s survey i s to i d e n t i f y reasonable and industry-wide 

overhead costs t h a t are t y p i c a l — t h a t vary w i t h w e l l 

depth. 

Q And what does t h i s e x h i b i t show w i t h r e ­

spect to a d m i n i s t r a t i v e overhead f o r a d r i l l i n g w e l l r a t e 

and f o r a producing w e l l r a t e f o r a w e l l i n t h i s region a t 

t h i s depth? 

A Well, the actual survey f i g u r e s , the r e ­

s u l t s from the survey f o r a w e l l t h a t would be i n the depth 

range of 5-to-l0,000 f e e t i n d i c a t e s t h a t the average over­

head ra t e was $4138 and the — once the w e l l i s on produ­

c i n g , on production and i n an operating s t a t u s , the monthjy 

operating overhead would be $446 per w e l l month durin g 1986. 

Q And i s Dugan Production requesting t h a t 

the D i v i s i o n set an a d m i n i s t r a t i v e overhead f o r d r i l l i n g and 
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operating i n i t s order? 

A Yes, we are requesting a d r i l l i n g over­

head r a t e of $4000 per month and a producing overhead r a t e 

of $400 per month. 

Q Do you see any reason why you would r e ­

quest the D i v i s i o n to expedite i t s f i n d i n g s i n t h i s matter 

and issue an order i n an expedited manner? 

A We — we do request t h a t the Commission 

expedite an order as much as possible from the standpoint 

t h a t we we would l i k e to d r i l l t h i s w e l l p r i o r t o end of the 

year and t h i s i s an area t h a t once w i n t e r sets i n , i f we 

don't have a r e a l cold w i n t e r , i t ' s a very expensive place 

to operate i t , and because of our concern t o minimize the 

environmental impact of g e t t i n g i n and out and during d r i l ­

l i n g operations, we would p r e f e r not to operate a f t e r w i n t e r 

sets i n and so we would l i k e to commence t h i s w e l l as — a t 

an e a r l i e s t p ossible date. 

Q And i n the event t h a t you are unable t o 

commence the d r i l l i n g of the w e l l p r i o r to the onslaught of 

the w i n t e r season, would you request t h a t the order — the 

e f f e c t i v e p e riod of the order to extended beyond the normal 

90 days? 

A Yes. I n the event, f o r some unforeseen 

reason, we're not able to commence d r i l l i n g operations p r i o r 

to w i n t e r s e t t n g i n , i t would be our plans t o w a i t u n t i l 
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e a r l y s p r i n g and the roads dry out and i f t h a t i s the c i r ­

cumstances, we would be beyond the normal 90-day period of 

the forced p o o l i n g , so we would request t h a t t h i s forced 

p o o l i n g order be e f f e c t i v e to June 1st i n order t o allow us 

the f l e x i b i l i t y of postponing our d r i l l i n g plans u n t i l e a r l y 

spring of '88 i n the event winter and weather p r o h i b i t s 

d r i l l i n g d uring the l a t t e r p a r t of t h i s year. 

Q Mr. Roe, I have j u s t asked you to b r i e f l y 

review E x h i b i t s One through Six. Are you f a m i l i a r w i t h a l l 

of those e x h i b i t s ? 

A Yes, I am f a m i l i a r w i t h them a l l . 

Q And were they prepared by you or under 

your supervision and do you have s p e c i f i c reason t o know of 

t h e i r accuracy? 

A Yes, these e x h i b i t s were prepared by — 

j o i n t l y by Mr. Corcoran and myself or under our s u p e r v i s i o n . 

MR. STOVALL: I'd ask t h a t 

E x h i b i t s One through Six be admitted. 

MR. STOGNER: E x h i b i t s One 

through Six w i l l be admitted i n t o evidence a t t h i s time. 

Q And, Mr. Roe, would you — do you b e l i e v e 

t h a t the g r a n t i n g of t h i s a p p l i c a t i o n would be i n the 

i n t e r e s t of conservation, the prevention of waste, and the 

p r o t e c t i o n of c o r r e l a t i v e r i g h t s ? 

A Yes, t h a t ' s my b e l i e f . 
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MR. STOGNER: Mr. Roe, do you 

have a r i g ready to go on t h i s thing? What would be the 

e a r l i e s t possible time you can d r i l l on i t ? 

A We have surveyed and made our archaeolo­

g i c a l i n s p e c t i o n . We — we are not w a i t i n g to move a r i g 

on; however, i t would be j u s t a matter of f i n d i n g a r i g t h a t 

was ready t o move. 

We would l i k e t o be ready t o — we would 

l i k e t o a c t u a l l y — t h i s hearing was a c t u a l l y — i t was our 

i n t e n t i o n to have had t h i s hearing during the Examiner hear­

ing i n mid-October; however, i t was not advertised i n a man­

ner t h a t we could have our hearing e a r l i e r . Our i n i t i a l 

plans was to be d r i l l i n g by mid-November to f o r sure avoid 

the — the bad roads t h a t come w i t h w i n t e r . 

Our pla n , again, we're not s e t t i n g and a 

day a f t e r the order i s approved we won't be ready t o move a 

r i g on, but i t won't be long a f t e r t h a t . 

MR. STOGNER: Okay. 

A I would l i k e t o add to t h a t , Mr. Stogner, 

t h a t the — having not been able t o have had our hearing i n 

the October Examiner Hearing, i t has b a s i c a l l y put us a 

couple of months or a couple of weeks behind schedule, so 

any e x p e d i t i o n t h a t could be on the p a r t of the Commission, 

we sure would appreciate. 

MR. STOGNER: Okay, thank you, 
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Mr. Roe. We'll d e f i n i t e l y take t h a t under advisement. 

Is there anything else f u r t h e r 

i n t h i s case, Mr. S t o v a l l ? 

MR. 

make a b r i e f c l o s i n g statement. 

MR. 

any f u r t h e r questions of — 

MR. 

ti o n s or examination, no. 

MR. 

be excused. 

Mr. 

MR. 

t h i s , l i k e w i s e . 

We'd ask t h a t the D i v i s i o n ap­

prove Dugan's a p p l i c a t i o n as set f o r t h i n t h e i r a p p l i c a t i o n . 

We would ask t h a t the order be ap p l i c a b l e t o those i d e n t i ­

f i e d working i n t e r e s t owners who have not executed an AFE 

and an operating agreement w i t h i n the s p e c i f i e d period of 

time a f t e r the D i v i s i o n has entered i t s order. We beli e v e 

the operating agreement i s an e s s e n t i a l p a r t of j o i n d e r i n 

the w e l l because i t provides f o r — not only f o r an expres­

sion of i n t e n t t o p a r t i c i p a t e i n the w e l l but f o r a manner 

i n which the operator can f u n c t i o n , c o l l e c t t h e i r money, ad­

m i n i s t r a t i v e overhead, and many matters — some of which 

STOVALL: Only I'd l i k e t o 

STOGNER: Okay. I s there 

STOVALL: No f u r t h e r ques-

STOGNER: Okay. They may 

Sto v a l l ? 

STOVALL: I w i l l expedite 
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are otherwise provided f o r i n the forced pooling order. 

In other words, we'd l i k e the 

order t o s p e c i f i c a l l y s t a t e t h a t j o i n d e r w i l l be accom­

pl i s h e d by those p a r t i e s not wishing to be force pooled by 

execution of an operating agreement. 

And we're not asking the Com­

mission to approve the agreement but r a t h e r t h a t there be an 

agreement negotiated between the p a r t i e s . 

For the reasons s t a t e d , we'd 

also request t h a t t h i s AFE, which have been attached t o Ex­

h i b i t Three, be the approved estimated w e l l costs f o r the 

Commission, f o r the D i v i s i o n , and be — be so approved i n 

the order i n order to expedite the time period a f t e r the en­

t r y of the order f o r Dugan to get on l o c a t i o n and begin 

d r i l l i n g the w e l l , and, as Mr. Roe s a i d , we do request t h a t 

the order to expedited and to p r o t e c t us on both ends, t h a t 

the date, the e f f e c t i v e period d u r i n g which Dugan must com­

mence the w e l l be extended t o June 1st, 1988, so t h a t i f 

Dugan can't beat the weather on the f a l l side of w i n t e r , 

then they have time i n t o the spring side of w i n t e r t o w a i t 

f o r b e t t e r weather i n order to d r i l l the w e l l a t a lesser 

cost. 

MR. STOGNER: Anything f u r t h e r ? 

MR. STOVALL: Nothing f u r t h e r . 

MR. STOGNER: Does anybody else 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

33 

have anything f u r t h e r i n Case Number 9251? 

I f not, t h i s case w i l l be taken 

under advisement. 

(Hearing concluded.) 
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C E R T I F I C A T E 

I , SALLY W. BOYD, C.S.R., DO HEREBY 

CERTIFY t h a t the foregoing T r a n s c r i p t of Hearing was 

reported by me; t h a t the said t r a n s c r i p t i s a f u l l , t r u e , 

and c o r r e c t record of the hearing, prepared by me to the 

best of my a b i l i t y . 
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